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**This Question and Answer document was revised on 12-30-2016 to reflect additional questions, 

answers, and clarifications that resulted from the pre-bid meeting on 12-28-2016.** 

At the start of the pre-bid meeting, there were clarifications made by the LCRA Holdings Corporation 

Project Manager: 

1) We anticipate the fence layout containing 8 separate gates, however, there is only one 

anticipated main entry gate. The security contractor will only be responsible for securing the 

main entry gate, and individual contractors will staff the exit gates if necessary. 

2) Please provide costs for providing your own power to the guard shack (if necessary). There 

will likely not be an opportunity to tie into power. 

3) There are no requirements from LCRA Holdings Corporation on minimum standards for the 

guard shack. It is up to you on the requirements of the shack to protect your guards from the 

elements. 

4) 2205-2233 Cass Avenue (Rhema Church Building) will be available for use as a base, until it is 

also taken down at the end of the project. 

5) Unit rates for all billable costs need to be provided as conditions could change where we ask 

for varying levels of security. Bids will be evaluated on unit costs vs lump sum cost, as we need 

to be able to fluctuate security levels if necessary. At a minimum, we need one guard for the 

entry gate, and one-two guards for site patrol. 

6) We are anticipating seeking monthly invoicing from the selected contractor, with provided 

cost projections based on weekly meetings and agreed upon number of guards and other 

security measures. We would like to have a representative available to attend the weekly 

project management team meetings. 

7) The new due date for submissions is Jan 6th at 12:00 pm. 

 

The following are questions submitted related to the aforementioned RFB, and LCRA Holdings 

Corporation’s responses. 

1. Does this project require us to follow city living wage ordinance and or Davis Bacon Act (do you 
have pay minimums for Security Offices) 

a. Prevailing wage and Living Wage Minimums apply. 
 

2. Does the MBE/WBE have to be followed? 
a. All bidders are required to comply with Executive Order #28, as amended, to achieve 

the goals of 25% minority-owned and 5% woman-owned participation. Bids submitted 
that do not achieve the M/WBE participation goals will be evaluated on their good 



faith efforts to attain the stated goals. Authority for evaluating the minority and 
women participation component on contracts will rest with the St. Louis Development 
Corporation (SLDC) M/WBE & Compliance Office. It should also be noted, that while 
price is a driving factor of the selected bid, there are other components that are taken 
into account for the successful bid (Qualifications, Capacity, Experience, safety record, 
and M/WBE participation goals). Lowest bid does not necessarily mean the most 
responsive bid. 

 

3. What hours of operation will construction be operating?  What are the hours of the shifts? 
a. We anticipate normal construction hours to be 7:00 AM – 7:00 PM. We are asking 

though that the site still have security 24/7. 
 

4. How much activity will be going through the gates when it’s not shift change? Steady flow 
throughout the day and night? 

a. We anticipate the majority of the traffic in and out of gates to be during regular 
construction hours.  

 

5. What type of gate will be used at the entrance/exit?  There is only one gate?  Where will the 
gate be located? 

a. 12 ft, double swing gates will be utilized at the eight (8) total gates, though we do not 
anticipate all gates being accessible for through traffic at all times. There will be one 
main entry gate, and that is the gate the selected security contractor will be expected 
to secure during construction hours. See the attached fence perimeter drawing for 
proposed locations of gates. 

 

6. For the portable shelter/guard shack, is there a minimum size the guard shack needs to be? To 
save money, can we tie into the construction power or does it have its own generator operating 
24/7?  That will be expensive to fuel just FYI. 

a. No minimum size requirement, and please supply a unit cost for providing your own 
power to the shack.  

 

7. For toilet facilities, assume this will just be for guard use only or will others be using?  If it’s for 
multiple users, how many port-a-potties are needed?  Just an option to save money, if 
construction has port-a-potties, officers could just use though? 

a. Please provide a unit cost for providing your own toilet facilities.  
 

8. Are the wages for the security officers need to be prevailing wage since this project is in 
conjunction with the City of St. Louis? 

a. Prevailing wages will apply 
 

9. How well lit will the construction site be at night? 
a. Street lights will remain until streets are removed from the project site. 

 

10. Where the security officers and contractors park their vehicles, will it be within the site so it’s 
secure or will there be another secured area to park? 

a. We anticipate there being enough be parking on site. 
 



 

11. What are Key Hours of operation?  Expected number of contractors/ deliveries during key times. 
a. Anticipate normal hours of operation from 7:00 AM-7:00 PM. Number of contractors 

going through the site will vary depending on activities. 
 

 

12.  Is there a list of requirements warranting search?  
a. Not at this time 

 

 

13. Will there be a general access list or will we receive daily access lists?  Will sub-contractors 
provide list of employees allowed on site? 

a. As contracts are awarded the contractor will provide a list of all employees needing 
access to the site. 

 

14. Will we receive list of valid contractors as project progresses? This will definitely be needed to 
ensure site security.  

a. Yes 
 

15. What type of fencing will be on the perimeter?  Is security company required to provide site 
fencing?  

a. Chain link minimum 7 ft height around the perimeter. No, we have a separate RFB for 
the fence contract. 

 

16. Number of entrance/egress points for area that we will need to provide tower lighting and 
security for? 

a. Anticipated eight (8) entrance/egress points. 
 

17. Will security company be providing the toilets and utilities for the entire site (to include 
contractors)? 

a. No 
 
 

18. What is the amount of space provided for mobile command post? Will this space be able to 
access the power grid (through Ameren) or will we be operating completely off grid? 

a. Rhema Church will be available to use as a command post for the majority of the 
project. We have no other requirements other than that we ask that a command post 
is no larger than a standard site trailer. There may be opportunities to access the 
power grid system, but it is not guaranteed throughout the duration. Please provide a 
cost for temp power. 

 

 

19. What is the location of Contractor Off-site parking and will the Security team required to 
maintain presence on this location as well? 

a. We anticipate adequate parking for all contractors on-site for the duration of the 
project. We anticipate only allowing company vehicles on-site. 

 



 

20. Will the security team be able to maintain perimeter space to employ security cameras?  We 
have the availability for mobile masts, but they do require a sunk pole to mount the mast on.  

a. Yes, please provide a unit cost per mast. 
 

21. Are the guards required to be armed? 
a. No 

 
 

22. Is the security contractor providing lighting? 
a. We will be leaving up street lights within the site as long as feasible for the project. At 

some point, lighting may need to be provided. Please provide a unit cost for supplying 
lighting. Please include the size and type of lighting structure in your cost. 

 

23. Are we required to have a bond? 
a. We reserve the right to require a third party fidelity bond, but it is not necessary for 

submission of bids. 
 

24. Anticipated start date? 
a. We anticipate abatement activity beginning sometime after January 16th, and if 

possible, would like to have engaged the successful contractor to patrol by that time. 
The gate guard responsibility start date, however, will be determined by the fence 
installation completion date. 

 

25. Will all employees/contractors have badges? 
a. We are currently discussing exactly how eligible staff will be identified on site. Badges 

could be an option. At a minimum, all personnel on site must be wearing company 
logos that clearly show they belong to a contractor approved to be on site. 


